Audit Committee

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the
provisions of the Local Government Act,
1999, that the next Meeting of the Audit
Committee will be held in the Council
Chambers, 181 Unley Road Unley on

Tuesday 17 October 2023 6.30pm

for the purpose of considering the items
included on the Agenda.

Chief Executive Officer






MEMBERS

Presiding Member M Davies
Independent Member A Martin
Independent Member P Lee
Councillor M Broniecki
Councillor J Gaffey

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Ngadlurlu tampinthi, ngadlu Kaurna yartangka inparrinthi. Ngadlurlu parnuku tuwila
yartangka tampinthi.

Ngadlurlu Kaurna Miyurna yaitya yarta-mathanya Wama Tarntanyaku tampinthi.
Parnuku yailtya, parnuku tapa purruna yalarra puru purruna.*

We would like to acknowledge this land that we meet on today is the traditional
lands for the Kaurna people and that we respect their spiritual relationship with
their country.

We also acknowledge the Kaurna people as the traditional custodians of the
Adelaide region and that their cultural and heritage beliefs are still as important to
the living Kaurna people today.

*Kaurna Translation provided by Kaurna Warra Karrpanthi
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ORDER OF BUSINESS

ITEM

PAGE NO

1. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.1 APOLOGIES
Nil

1.2 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil

1.3 CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Members to advise if they have any material, actual or perceived
conflict of interest in any Items in this Agenda and a Conflict of
Interest Disclosure Form (attached) is to be submitted.

1.4 MINUTES
1.4.1 Minutes of the Ordinary Audit Committee Meeting held

Thursday, 28 September 2023

1.5 DEFERRED/ADJOURNED ITEMS

Nil
2. REPORTS

2.1 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements

2.2 Procurement Policy (October 2023)

2.3  Treasury Management Policy (October 2023)

2.4 Internal Audit: Progress on Agreed Management Actions
(October 2023)

2.5 Proposed Update to Audit Committee Workplan (October 2023)

3. OTHER BUSINESS

NEXT MEETING

Tuesday 14 November 2023 - 6.30pm

Council Chambers, 181 Unley Road Unley
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE:

ITEM NUMBER:

DATE OF MEETING:

AUTHOR:

DIVISION:
ATTACHMENTS:

2022-23 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.1
17 OCTOBER 2023

MORGAN KRIS, TEAM LEADER - FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTING

BUSINESS SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT

1. CITY OF UNLEY'S 2022-23 GENERAL
PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(FINAL DRAFT)

AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT

STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE BY
AUDITOR

4. CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR
INDEPENDENCE

5. CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETARY
AUTHORITY GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2022 -
2023

6. BROWN HILL AND KESWICK CREEKS
STORMWATER BOARD GENERAL
PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR 2022 - 2023

7. EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY INC GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2022 -
2023

1. PURPOSE

The 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards and the SA Local
Government Model Financial Statements as prescribed in the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

The statements are now presented to the Audit Committee for due
consideration and recommendation to Council that they present fairly the
state of affairs of the Council for the 2022-23 financial year.
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RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. Having reviewed the City of Unley’s 2022-23 General Purpose
Financial Statements, contained in Attachment 1 and External
Auditor, Galpins, Audit Completion Report contained in Attachment 2,
the Audit Committee considers that the 2022-23 General Purpose
Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs of Council and
recommends presentation to Council for adoption on 27 November
2023.

3. The City of Unley’s 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements,
contained in Attachment 1, be certified by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Mayor.

4.  The Certification of Auditor Independence contained in Attachment 4
be noted by Council and be certified by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee.

5. The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose Financial
Statements for 2022-23, signed by the subsidiary’s External Auditor
and contained in Attachment 5, be noted.

6. The Brown Hill and Keswick Creek’s Stormwater Project Board
General Purpose Financial Statements for 2022-23, signed by the
subsidiary’s External Auditor and contained in Attachment 6, be
noted.

7. The Eastern Waste Management Authority General Purpose
Financial Statements for 2022-23, signed by the subsidiary’s External
Auditor and contained in Attachment 7, be noted.

RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES — FOUR YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

4. Civic Leadership

4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.

4.2 Council provides the best value services to the community.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

BACKGROUND

The 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements have now been
prepared and are attached for Members’ information and review. They
have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting
Standards and the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements as
prescribed in the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
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2011. A copy of the Financial Statements are provided as Attachment 1 to
this Report.

Attachment 1

In accordance with section 126(4)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999,
the Audit Committee has a responsibility to review the Financial
Statements to be satisfied that they present fairly the state of affairs of
Council.

Council’s external auditor, Galpins have provided their 2022-23 Audit
Completion Report and have indicated that, subject to completion of the
identified procedural matters, their Audit Reports in relation to the
Financial Statements and Internal Controls will be signed without
reference to any qualification. The report has been provided as
Attachment 2

Attachment 2.

DISCUSSION

The 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements are attached for the
Committee’s information and review.

Attachment 1
The summary for General-Purpose Financial Statements are as follows:

5.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

Net Operating Surplus

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows a net operating surplus
(including the equity accounted businesses: Centennial Park, Brown Hill
Keswick Creek Stormwater Project, and Eastern Waste Management
Authority), of $3.934M for 2022-23. This is a reduction of $0.7M compared
with the prior year operating surplus of $4.685M. The reduction is due to
an increase Council’'s operating expenditure of $3.7M (7.7%), offset by an
increase in operating income $3.0M (5.6%).

The increases in income and expenditure from the prior financial year, and
variances detailed below (which are compared to the prior financial year),
do not reflect the variance to budget. A comparison of the financial results
to budget will be provided to Council as part of the presentation of the
Financial Statements to Council in November.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

$000 2022-23 2021-22 ’ Movement
Council Operating Surplus 3,464 4,687 (1,223)
Centennial Park Net gain / (loss) 420 67 353
(I?(r)cs)\flsv)n Hill Keswick Creek Net gain / 26 (69) 95
East Waste 24 - 24
Net Operating Surplus 3,934 4,685 (751)
Net Surplus 7,480 5,886 1,594
Other Comprehensive Income 168,938 8,864 160,074
Total Comprehensive Income 176,418 14,750 161,668
Income

Income increased by $3.0M compared to the 2021-22 financial year. Key
items included the following:

o Rate income increased by $2.09M which was in line with Council’s
expectations. This increase was attributed to:

- A General Rate increase for the 2022-23 financial year of 3.7%
before growth; and

- Growth from new developments and additions of 1.07%.

o The Net Gain from Subsidiaries increased by $403K, primarily
attributed to CPCA’s increased income from user charges and
investment Income.

o Statutory Charges increased by $306K, largely due to parking
expiations associated with the Royal Adelaide Show. The 2021 Show
was cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions, and adverse weather
conditions during the 2022 Show restricted parking in the Park
Lands, resulting in a large number of parking expiations;

o User Charges increased by $167K, attributed to:
- Anincrease in parking recoveries $60K;
- Anincrease in Swimming Centre memberships $48K; and
- Anincrease in income from hoarding $30K

o Reimbursements increased by $259K due to Unley Oval $93K
contribution for additional works at Sturt Football Club and funds
collected from the rate payers for additional waste bins $63K;

Page 8 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 17 October 2023



Investment Income increase by $109K due to a significant rise in
interest rates and an increase cash held on deposit; and

Grants, subsidies and contributions reduced by $353K due to a
reduction in the Local Roads funding $473K, offset by increases in
Financial Assistance Grant $82K and Public Library Service initiative
grant of $42K.

Expenditure

Expenditure increased by $3.7M compared to the 2021-22 financial year.
Key items included:

(1)

(@)

Employee Costs increased by $485K. The increase was principally
due to the enterprise agreement, reduced vacancies and an
additional project funded position.

Materials, Contracts and Other Expenditure increased by $2.5M. Key
items included the following:

- Consultants increased by $452K, due to Local Government
Elections $199K, condition audits and valuations for
infrastructure and buildings $194K, and an increase in
Economic Development advice $41K;

- Maintenance Contracts increased by $423K, due to increased
maintenance on footpaths $209K, reserves $198K, roads $51K
and buildings $50K, partially offset by a reduction in line
marking $139K, a significant proportion of which was completed
in 2021-22;

- 367K. $208K of this relates to a change in accounting
standards whereby cloud-based computing costs cannot be
capitalised and must be annually expensed as an operating
cost. The balance is the CPI rise in licence fees;

- IT Cloud Computing expenditure has increased by $575K. This
is due to

= Costs associated with the development and transition of
existing systems to cloud based services $367K, including
the enterprise asset management system and payroll
system. Accounting standards restrict the capitalisation of
such costs.

» Software and licences $208K have increased due to new
annual licence fees for systems (including Council’s finance
systems) and significant indexation increases for existing
cloud based services.

- Power costs increased by $200K due to increased prices
arising from a short-term contract negotiated by the Local
Government Association;

- Community Programs (including events) increased by $154K as
certain programs and event were cancelled in the prior financial
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year due to restrictions associated with COVID-19 (eg. the
Santos Tour Down Under Stage Start); and

- Waste Contracts increase by $508K due to the transition to a
new service provider (East Waste), an increase in fuel prices,
and an increase in the quantum and cost of disposing civil
construction waste.

o Depreciation increased by $743K following the revaluation of roads,
kerbs & water table on 1 July 2022.

Other Comprehensive Income

The significant increase in other comprehensive income $160K is due to
the increase in the revaluation surplus of $168.8K arising the following
infrastructure and property revaluations:

. Land $111.5M,

. Roads $28.0M,

. Buildings $13.0M;

o Kerbs and water table $10.4M; and

o Other Assets, including Open Space, $5.9M.

5.2 Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position discloses the total assets, total
liabilities, and total Council Equity of Council at the end of the reporting
period. As at 30 June 2023, Council held net assets totalling $737.2M
compared with $560.8M for the previous year, representing an increase in
total equity of $176.4M.

Statement of

Financial Position 2022-23 2021-22 Movement
$'000

Total Assets 750,073 574,491 175,582
Less Total Liabilities (12,859) (13,695) 836
Net Assets 737,214 560,796 176,418

The key movements for 2022-23 across Asset and Liabilities are as
follows:

(1) Current assets increased by $2.1M. This was largely driven by a
$1.95M increase across Trade and Other Receivables due to the
following:

- Debtors due to accrued revenue from the sale of land $0.7M;

- Increase in prepayments $0.5M;
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(@)

3)

(4)

Accrued revenue and Rates (General and Other) increased to
$0.4M; and

Moderate increase in cash, $0.2M held under deposits on call
and cash on hand.

Equity Accounted Investments increased by $1.09M, represented by
the following equity increases:

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority increased by $0.5M. This
was attributable to:

0 an operating surplus of $420K (50% share); and

O anincrease in the reserve recognising a bequest received
from a deceased estate asset to maintain the CPCA site
$70K (50% share).

Brown Hill Keswick Creek Stormwater Project increased by
$0.4M. This was due to capital contributions $0.5M offset by
decrease in revaluation of infrastructure and land improvements
and asset disposals, $0.1M,;

Eastern Waste Management Authority increased by $0.1M. The
share of equity is recognised for the first time since the City of
Unley joined the Authority as a Member Council in July 2022.
The increase was attributed to:

0 Other comprehensive income - asset disposal $18K
(12.5% share);

0  An operating surplus of $24K (12.5% share);

0  Share of opening accumulated surplus of $106K (12.5%
share).

Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment increased by $172.4M.
The capitalisation of new $6.3M and renewal assets $9.1M, offset by
depreciation of $10.8M and asset disposals of $1.1M.

The increase in Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment of
$168.8M is mainly due to the increase in valuations of the
following asset categories;

0 Land $111.5M,

0o Roads $28.0M,

0  Buildings $13.0M;

o  Kerbs and water table $10.4M; and

0  Other Assets, including Open Space, $5.9M.

Liabilities reduced $0.8M from $13.7M to $12.9M.

Trade and other payables reduced by $2.5M, from $6.2M in
2021-22 to $3.7M in 2022-23. This was due to the timing of
payments for major building projects in the prior financial year.
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- This was offset by an increase in current and non-current
borrowings $1.65M from $3.2M in 2021-22 to $4.85M. This was
primarily due to the completion of projects carried forward from
the 2021-22 financial year and reduction in trade and other
payables.

5.3 Statement of Cash Flows

Council generated $9.8M from its Operating Activities during the
financial year compared to $17.1M during 2021-22; this is largely due
to an increase in payments to suppliers and employees. Details of
how this reconciles with the net surplus and changes in net assets are
shown in Note 11 of the Financial Statements.

During the year, Council spent $15.4M on the construction and
purchase of assets compared to $9.5M in 2021-22. This increase was
attributable to the construction of the Unley Oval Grandstand
Community Hub, the Edmund Avenue Business Hub, and new
clubrooms for the Millswood Croquet Club.

Borrowings increased by $1.65M during the year as outlined above,
noting project carry forwards of $2.57M into the 2023-24 financial year
will reduce the forecast repayment of borrowings in 2023-24 as
outlined in the Preliminary End of Year Report.

The Cash Flow Statement shows a moderate increase in cash held of
$170K compared to the prior financial year.

5.4 Financial Key Performance Indicators

The key financial indicators are summarised and discussed below and
are also included as Note 15 Financial Indicators of the Financial
Statements.

Financial Indicators ‘2022—23 2021-22 | Adopted Target

Operating Surplus
($'000)

3,934 4,685

Adjusted Operating

0, 0, 0, 1 1
Surplus Ratio* 6.3% 7.4% | 5% or greater of total operating income
Net_F|nanC|aI Liabilities 13% 20% !_ess than 80% of total operating
Ratio income

100% or greater of recommended
104% 63% | spend in the Asset Management Plans
over a 10-year period

Asset Renewal
Funding Ratio

*The Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio removes the distortion of Federal
Government advance payments made in 2021-22.

The Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with
Information Paper 9 — Local Government Financial Indicators prepared
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as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local
Government Association of South Australia.

Council’'s Operating Surplus Ratio and Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
continue to perform better than Council’'s adopted targets whilst the
Asset Renewal Funding Ratio was in line with Council’s adopted target
for 2022-23.

The City of Unley continues to be financially sustainable. Council will
continue to review and monitor future financial results and its financial
position in conjunction with its Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP).

5.5 Audit Opinion

The role of the external auditor is to provide an audit opinion to Council
with respect to the audited financial statements.

In addition, Section 129 of the Local Government Act 1999 also
requires the external auditor to provide an opinion that the internal
controls are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial transactions of the council have been conducted properly and
in accordance with law. These controls relate to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of
property, and incurring of liabilities to ensure that they have been
conducted properly and in accordance with law in all material respects.

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an
adequate system of internal controls, in accordance with section 125 of
the Local Government Act 1999.

The audit procedures included assessing the controls of Council based
on the criteria in the Better Practice Model - Internal Financial
Controls. In their Audit Completion Report, Galpins advised the
Council demonstrated a high level of compliance with the
implementation of an internal control framework consistent with the
principles within the Better Practice Model.

The external auditor, Mr. Muhlhausler has completed the audit of the
financial statements and in his report on matters arising from the audit
(Audit Completion report) has indicated that subject to completion of
the remaining outstanding matters, Galpins anticipate issuing
unqualified opinions in relation to the financial statements and internal
controls.

Attachment 2

The final audit clearance issued is subjected to:

e the General Purpose Financial Statements certified by Council’s
Mayor and Chief Executive Officer after the Audit Committee
meeting on 17 October 2023.
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5.6 Certification Statement of Independence of Council Auditor

Regulation 22 (5) of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 requires the auditor of a Council to provide a written
statement attesting to their independence. Council’s Auditor, Galpins
have provided their proposed Statement of Audit Independence in the
Annual Audit Completion report, as prescribed in the Regulations.

Attachment 3

Regulation 21 (2) of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 requires the Council's Chief Executive Officer and
the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee to provide a statement,
on an annual basis, that the Council Auditor is independent of the
Council for the relevant financial year.

Attachment 4

5.7 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority Financial Statements

A copy of Centennial Park Cemetery Authority’'s (CPCA) financial
statements for 2022-23 is attached for information.

Attachment 5

The financial statements reflect a Net Operating Surplus of $840K for
the reporting period compared to a surplus of $134K for the previous
year. Council’'s 50% share of this result is $420K.

The financial statements reflect Net Assets of $48.5M as at 30 June
2023. This represents an increase of $1.07M for the reporting period.
This is due to an increase of $2.3M in Cash and Cash equivalent
assets, offset by the increase in Provisions (Deferred Interment Rights
Revenue) of $1M.

The equity accounted value of CPCA reflected in the City of Unley’s
Statement of Financial Position is $24.3M compared to $23.8M for the
previous year. The details of the breakdown are provided in Note 19.

5.8 Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Project Financial
Statements

A copy of the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Project
(BHKC) financial statements for 2022-23 are attached for information.

Attachment 6

The financial statements reflect a Net Operating Surplus of $126K for
the reporting period compared to a deficit of $330K for the previous
year. Council's 21% share of this result is $26K.

The financial statements reflect Net Assets of $37M as at 30 June
2023. This represents an increase of $1.8M for the reporting period

Page 14 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 17 October 2023



which is reflective of the entity increasing its capital works through
contributions from Member Councils and government grants. It is
noted that Current Liabilities has increased by $3.5M due to capital
grants received in advanced for 2022-23 compared to the previous
year. The BHKC Board has assessed the liquidity risk to be low with
sufficient resources to meet its obligations.

Council's share of equity accounted value of BHKC reflected in the
City of Unley’s Statement of Financial Position is $7.8M compared to
$7.4M for the previous year. The details of the breakdown are provided
in Note 19.

5.9 Eastern Waste Management Authority Financial Statements

A copy of the Eastern Waste Management Authority financial
statements for 2022-23 are attached for information.

Attachment 7

The financial statements reflect a Net Operating Surplus of $190K
which is the first year of this equity accounted subsidiary. Council’s
12.5% share of this result is $24K.

The financial statements reflect Net Assets of $1.2M as at 30 June
2023. Council’s share of equity accounted value of Eastern Waste
Management Authority reflected in the City of Unley’s Statement of
Financial Position is $148K.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Financial/budget implications

Council must, on or before 30 November, submit a signed copy of
the audited financial statements of Council to the Minister for Local
Government and the Presiding Member of the South Australian Local

Government Grants Commission.

Council must also consider a report showing the audited financial
results of the Council compared with the estimated financial results

set out in the budget, by no later than 31 December of each year.

6.2 Leqgislative/Risk Management

The 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements have now been
prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the

Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

In accordance with section 126(4)(a) of the Local Government Act
1999, the Audit Committee has a responsibility to review the
Financial Statements to be satisfied that they present fairly the state

of affairs of Council.
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6.3

6.4

6.5

Staffing/Work Plans/Additional Resource Impact

NIL

Climate/Environmental Impact

NIL

Social/Economic

NIL

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

That:

1.

2.

The report be received.

Having reviewed the City of Unley’s 2022-23 General Purpose
Financial Statements, contained in Attachment 1 and External
Auditor, Galpins, Audit Completion Report contained in Attachment 2,
the Audit Committee considers that the 2022-23 General Purpose
Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs of Council and
recommends presentation to Council for adoption on 27 November
2023.

The City of Unley’s 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements,
contained in Attachment 1, be certified by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Mayor.

The Certification of Auditor Independence contained in Attachment 4
be noted by Council and be certified by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee.

The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose Financial
Statements for 2022-23, signed by the subsidiary’'s External Auditor
and contained in Attachment 5, be noted.

The Brown Hill and Keswick Creek’s Stormwater Project General
Purpose Financial Statements for 2022-23, signed by the
subsidiary’s External Auditor and contained in Attachment 6, be
noted.

The Eastern Waste Management Authority General Purpose
Financial Statements for 2022-23, signed by the subsidiary’s External
Auditor and contained in Attachment 7, be noted.
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In accordance with section 126(4) of the Local Government Act 1999 the
Audit Committee needs to review the General Purpose Financial
Statements 2022-23 and be satisfied that they present fairly the state of
affairs of Council in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and
Australian Accounting Standards.

Council will then be presented with the General Purpose Financial
Statements at its November Council meeting for adoption and, in
accordance with legislation, a copy of the General Purpose Financial
Statements will be sent to the Minister for Local Government and the SA
Local Government Grants Commission.

The 2022-23 financial result is pleasing. Council will continue to review

and monitor future financial results and its financial position in conjunction
with its Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP).

Option 2 -
That:

1. The report be received.

2. The Audit Committee advises that it has reviewed the annual
General Purpose Financial Statements of the Council for the financial
year ended 30 June 2023 and is not satisfied that they present fairly
the state of affairs of Council and require further review before
presentation to Council.

Amendments to be determined by the Audit Committee

As a result, this may delay the adoption of the 2022-23 General Purpose
Financial Statements by Council and will impact on Council’s legislative
requirements in providing signed financial statements to the Minister for
Local Government and the SA Local Government Grants Commission by
30 November 2023. The Administration would inform the Minister of the
delay in the adoption of the General Purpose Financial Statements.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title
Alex Brown Manager Finance and Procurement
Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2022-23 General Purpose Financial Statements (Final Draft)

Page 33 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 17 October 2023
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Authority.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

DEAN NEWBERY

SAMANTHA CRETEN
Director

19/09/2023
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board

Financial Statements for the year ended - 30 June 2023
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board

Contents

As at 30 June 2023
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Income
Operating contributions
Investment income

Total income

Expenses

Employee Costs

Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Depreciation

Finance costs

Total expenses

Operating surplus/(deficit)

Capital Funding / Grants for New / Upgraded assets
Asset disposal

Physical resources received free of charge
Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gain/(Loss) on the revaluation of infrastructure and land improvements

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Note

~l oW,

2023 2022
$ $

667,970 485,885
349,089 59,621
1,017,059 545,506
1,017,059 545,506
(370,390)  (316,967)
(327,030)  (471,641)
(193,552) (86,279)
(204) (220)
(891,176) __ (875,107)
125,883 (329,601)
585986 5,000,000
(1,417,180) .
- 463,605
(705,311) 5,134,004
161,738 129,175
161,738 129,175
(543,573) 5,263,179

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
3
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board

Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2023

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Capital contributions of constituent councils
Asset revaluation reserve

Capital funding and grants

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

Total equity

Note

1
12

13

14
15

15

16
17
18

2023 2022
$ $
10,151,401 9,502,569
295,521 441,304
10,446,922 9,943,873
30,669,487 25,786,423
30,669,487 25,786,423
41,116,409 35,730,296
4,001,388 537,080
30,719 25,407
4,032,107 562,487
10,066 -
10,066 i
4,042,173 562,487
37,074,236 35,167,809
20,319,907 17,869,907
570,390 408,652
17,224,448 16,638,521
(1,040,509) 250,729
37,074,236 _ 35,167,809

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
4
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at 1 July 2021

Net surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Capital contribution of Councils
Transfer to capital funding / grants

Balance at 30 June 2022

Balance at 1 July 2022

Net deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Capital contribution of Councils
Transfer to capital funding / grants

Balance at 30 June 2023

Capital
Contributions Capital Asset
of Funding Revaluation Accumulated
Council and Grants Reserve Surplus Total equity
$ $ $ $ $
13,869,907 11,638,521 279,477 116,725 25,904,630
- - - 5,134,004 5,134,004
- - 129,175 - 129,175
- - 129,175 5,134,004 5,263,179
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
- 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) -
17,869,907 16,638,521 408,652 250,729 35,167,809
Capital
Contributions Capital Asset Accumulated
of Funding Revaluation Surplus
Council and Grants Reserve I (Deficit)  Total equity
$ $ $ $
17,869,907 16,638,521 408,652 250,729 35,167,809
- - - (705,311) (705,311)
- - 161,738 - 161,738
- - 161,738 (705,311) (543,573)
2,450,000 - - - 2,450,000
- 585,927 - (585,927) -
20,319,907 17,224,448 570,390  (1,040,509) 37,074,236

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
5
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating receipts from constituent councils
Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for New / Upgraded assets

Proceeds from grant funding for new / upgraded assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions from Constituent Councils

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
6

Note

28

w0

16

11
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2023 2022
$ $
925,240 366,372
(355,012)  (291,623)
(482,260)  (503,546)
323,021 59,621
(204) (212)
410,785 (369,388)

(6,332,058) (11,263,316)

4,120,105 5,000,000
(2,211,953)  (6,263,316)
2,450,000 4,000,000
2,450,000 4,000,000

648,832  (2.632,704)
9,502,569 12,135,273
10,151,401 9,502,569
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The Board has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) and relevant South Australian Legislation. These financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board (the Board) is a Local Government Regional Subsidiary established
under Section 43 of and Schedule 2 to the Local Government Act 1999. The Regional Subsidiary is under the control of City
of Adelaide, City of Burnside, City of Unley, City of Mitcham and City of West Torrens.

The Board was established by a Gazettal dated 27 February 2018. The Board has been established to implement the
construction and maintenance of infrastructure and other measures for the purposes of a stormwater management plan
prepared by the constituent councils and approved by the Stormwater Management Authority. The Board's responsibilities
extend to the ongoing maintenance and operation of stormwater infrastructure delivered by the Board under the Stormwater
Management Plan. The property owner (whether that be a Council of private land owner) is responsible for maintenance and
upkeep of any existing assets, all new non-stormwater assets and all landscaping components. This may require the transfer
of assets to the property owner subsequent to the initial construction defects period.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they
apply. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have
been applied consistently unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets
and liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 13 September 2023 by the members of the Board.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Board's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 2.

(a) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Board expects to receive in exchange for those goods or
services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. |dentify the performance obligations

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred

Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the timing of
satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in the recognition of a receivable,
contract asset or contract liability.

None of the revenue streams have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12 months between receipt of funds
and satisfaction of performance obligations.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Specific revenue streams
The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Board are:

Operating revenue from constituent councils
Operating revenue from constituent councils is recognised as income as and when the Board becomes entitled to receive
the funds. This is outlined within the Boards Annual Budget which is agreed with all constituent councils.

Grant revenue
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

When grant revenue received meets the "enforceability” and "sufficiently specific” criteria in accordance with AASB 1058 and
AASB 15, the grant revenue is recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the performance obligations
have been met and delivered to the contributor.

Otherwise the grant is recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when the Board obtains control of
the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the Board and the amount of grant can
be measured reliably.

Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for all floating rate financial assets is inherent in the
instrument.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Board is entitled to it.

(b) Equity
Capital contributions

Capital contributions from constituent councils are recorded directly against equity as and when the Board becomes entitled
to receive the funds. This is outlined within the Boards Annual Budget, which is agreed with all constituent councils.

(c) Income tax
The activities of the Board are exempt from taxation under the Income Tax Assessment Act.

(d) Goods and Services Tax ('GST')

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of
the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(f) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30
days.
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Board has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

(g) Financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the initial
measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such assets are subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based on both the business
model within which such assets are held and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset unless an
accounting mismatch is being avoided.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and the
Board has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering part or all of a financial asset, it's carrying value is written off.

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification
On initial recognition, the Board classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured at:

- amortised cost

- fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL

- fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity)
- fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments (FVOCI - debt)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Board changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met: (i) it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

The Board's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets has been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an estimation of
lifetime expected credit losses. The Board has determined the probability of non-payment of the receivable and multiplied
this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in finance

expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is written off against the
associated allowance.
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities

The Board measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Board comprise trade payables.

(h) Property, plant and equipment
Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair
value at the date of acquisition. All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred
and depreciated as soon as the asset is held ready for use’. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including architects' fees, engineering design costs and all other costs
incurred.

The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Board includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour
on the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead. The Board considers that it controls the
infrastructure assets in accordance with its Charter. The constructed infrastructure assets may be located on land owned by
constituent councils or private property owners.

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds the materiality
thresholds set by the Board within the capitalisation policy. In determining (and in annually reviewing)) such thresholds,
regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. Current thresholds applicable to Board assets are as
follows:

Stormwater infrastructure - $2,000

Computer equipment - $1,000

Office equipment - $1,000

Subsequent Measurement

Stormwater infrastructure is subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Fair value
is determined with regard to the asset's highest and best use (considering legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset,
public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset) and is determined using the current
replacement cost method.

In line with the Board's capitalisation policy a valuation of infrastructure and land improvements has been undertaken as at
30 June 2023. The valuation was undertaken by Tina-James Freeman, Asset Consultant at Tonkin. Refer to Note 20 for
additional information on fair value determination of stormwater infrastructure.

Computer equipment and office equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to
the Board, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate
Land improvements 0.67 - 4%

Office equipment 10%

Computer equipment 10-33%
Stormwater infrastructure 1-6.6%
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset is reviewed
by the Project Director in consultation with the Board's Asset Consultant. In addition, the Board's Asset Capitalisation Policy
is reviewed every 2 years, with the last review undertaken in June 2023. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a
change in estimate.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to
form a cash-generating unit.

(j) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Board prior to the end of the financial year and
which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(k) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Provision is made for the Board's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of
the reporting period.

Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability,
consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements.
Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality corporate bond rates, with terms to maturity that match the
expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in comprehensive income.

No accrual is made for sick leave. The Board does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

Superannuation

All superannuation schemes to which the Board makes contributions on behalf of employees are of the accumulation type,
where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme,
and no further liability attaches to the Board.

Other long-term employee benefits

The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

(I) Economic dependence

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board is dependent on its constituent councils and other funding bodies for the
majority of its revenue used to achieve its objectives. At the date of this report, the Board believe that the Member Councils
and other bodies will continue to support the Board.
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory,
have not been early adopted by the Board for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2023. The Board has not yet
assessed the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The Board makes estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding assumptions
about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the
lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit
loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

The fair value of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 is determined by the use of valuation models. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs. These include discounted cash flow analysis or the use of observable inputs that require significant
adjustments based on unobservable inputs. For further information relating to fair value measurement, refer to Note 20.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Board assesses impairment of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to
the Board and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a
number of key estimates and assumptions.

Key estimates fair valuation of stormwater infrastructure and land improvements

Stormwater infrastructure assets are carried at fair value. As there is no market for the Board to use to determine fair value,
all assets have been valued as Level 3 inputs using a cost approach. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. For further
information relating to fair value measurement refer to Note 20.

Note 3. Operating contributions

2023 2022
$ $
City of Mitcham 133,594 97177
City of Burnside 133,594 97,177
City of West Torrens 133,594 97177
The Corporation of the City of Adelaide 133,594 97,177
The Corporation of the City of Unley 133,594 97,177
667,970 485,885

In accordance with the Charter of the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board Schedule 1, operating contributions
are received equally from each of the constituent councils at an agreed rate. The total value of operating contributions to be
received is agreed in the annual budget prepared by the Board.
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board

Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 4. Investment income

Bank Interest

Note 5. Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages - Board
Salaries and Wages - Employee
Superannuation contributions
Workers compensation
Employee entitlement costs

Total Employee costs

Note 6. Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses

Contractor & Consultant Services
Meeting Room Hire and Teleconference
Financial Services

Insurance - Mutual Liability Scheme

IT Services

Legal Services

Office expenses, Printing and Postage
PR, Website and Graphic Design
Professional Development

Asset Operating Costs & Maintenance
Asset Management Plan & Valuations
Business Case & Funding Campaign
Cyber security cost

Prescribed Expenses - Audit Remuneration
Sundry

Total Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses

Note 7. Finance costs

Bank fees
Interest expenses

Total finance costs
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2023 2022
$ $
349,089 59,621
2023 2022
$ $
80,500 82,000
239,464 197,086
33,596 27,909
1,452 3,356
15,378 6,616
370,390 316,967
2023 2022
$ $
23,056 13,602
1,256 1,142
33,164 40,391
48,981 46,649
4718 2,398
10,422 13,878
2,966 1,516
12,068 9,683
1,182 1,129
172,829 71,345
10,470 21,654
- 203,497
- 38,995
5,270 5,150
648 612
327,030 471,641
2023 2022
$ $
204 213
- 7
204 220
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements

As at 30 June 2023

Note 8. Depreciation

Infrastructure and land improvements

Office equipment

Note 9. Capital Funding / Grants for New / Upgraded assets

Stormwater Management Authority

Federal Funding (i)

2023 2022
$ $
192,947 86,279
605 -
193,552 86,279
2023 2022
$ $
- 5,000,000
585,986 -
585,986 5,000,000

(i) Total Federal funding received during the year is $4,120,105. Of the total amount received, only $585,986 is recognised
as revenue and the balance $3,534,119 is recorded as payments received in advance at Note 14 'Trade and other payables'.

Note 10. Asset disposal

Carrying amount of assets transferred to council

Note 11. Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand

2023 2022
$ $
1,417,180 -
2023 2022
$ $
10,151,401 9,502,569

As at 30 June 2023, cash held includes an amount of $8,803,000 (2022: $1,920,000) which is restricted for the purpose of
approved capital development projects (refer to Note 24 'Commitments").
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 12. Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Trade receivables
GST receivable
Accrued revenue
Prepayments

2023 2022
$ $
- 230,802
248,626 190,981
33,344 7,276
13,551 12,245
295,521 441,304

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature

of the balances.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in the financial

statements.

Note 13. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Non-current assets
Infrastructure and Land Improvements - at independent valuation
Infrastructure and Land Improvements - accumulated depreciation

Computer equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Capital works-in-progress
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2023 2022

26,728,566 21,226,430
(318,047)  (148,436)
26,410,519 21,077,994

2,454 4,493
(605) (4,493)
1,849 -

4,257,119 4,708,429

30,669,487 25,786,423
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 13. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out
below:

Infrastructure
Capital and Land
Works in  Improvement Office
Progress s Equipment Total
$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2021 4,916,640 8,717,743 - 13,634,383
Additions 11,645,539 463,605 - 12,109,144
Transfers in/(out) (11,853,750) 11,853,750 - -
Revaluation increments - 129,175 - 129,175
Depreciation expense B (86,279) B (86,279)
Balance at 30 June 2022 4,708,429 21,077,994 - 25786,423
Additions 6,303,763 25,841 2,454 6,332,058
Transfers in/(out) (6,755,073) 6,755,073 B B
Revaluation increments - 161,738 - 161,738
Disposals - (1,417,180) - (1,417,180)
Depreciation expense B (192,947) (605) (193,552)
Balance at 30 June 2023 4,257,119 26,410,519 1,849 30,669,487

Valuations of land and buildings

In line with the Board's capitalisation policy a valuation of completed infrastructure and land improvements was undertaken
as at 30 June 2023. The valuation was undertaken by Tina-James Freeman, Asset Consultant at Tonkin. The valuation basis
used for the infrastructure and land improvement assets is the depreciated replacement cost basis. Following agreement
between the Board and the Owners Executive Group of the Constituent Councils regarding ongoing maintenance
responsibilities, some assets delivered by the Board were handed over to the property owner during the year. These assets
include non-stormwater infrastructure such as footbridges, boardwalks and pathways. Assets located at Upper Brown Hill
Creek- Hawthorn Reserve and the South Park Lands wetland and creek works sites have been handed over to the Cities of
Mitcham and Adelaide. The carrying value of those assets handed over to the property owner at 30 June 2023 is $1,417,180.
As further work packages are completed on public and privately owned land, there will continue to be assets delivered by
the Board that are returned to the responsibility of the property owner.

2023 2022
$ $

Capital works-in-progress

South Parklands Stormwater - 3,806,423
Reference Design 896,838 744,629
Lower Brown Hill Creek - Package 1 1,928,857 3,135
Upper Brown Hill Creek - Area 3A Millswood 1,382,371 107,369
Upper Brown Hill Creek - Area 1C Forestville 49,053 46,873

4,257,119 4,708,429
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements

As at 30 June 2023

Note 14. Trade and other payables

Current liabilities

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Credit card

PAYG payable
Superannuation payable

Payments received in advance (capital grants)

2023 2022
$ $
223,822 180,862
229,703 341,129
(524) (837)
5,882 8,899
8,386 7,027
3,534,119 .
4,001,388 537,080

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. The carrying value
of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature of the

balances.

Note 15. Provisions

Current liabilities

Provision for annual leave

Non-current liabilities

Provision for long service leave

Note 16. Capital contributions of constituent councils

City of Mitcham
City of Burnside
City of West Torrens

Corporation of the City of Adelaide

Corporation of the City of Unley

Total Contributions by Owners

City of Mitcham Movement Table

Opening balance
Contributions
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2023 2022
$ $
30,719 25,407
10,066 -
40,785 25,407

2023 2022
$ $
2,031,991 1,786,991
2,438,389 2,144,389
9,956,754 8,756,254
1625593 1,429,593
4,267,180 3,752,680
20,319,907 17,869,907
2023 2022
$ $
1,786,991 1,386,991
245,000 400,000
2,031,991 1,786,991
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 16. Capital contributions of constituent councils (continued)

2023 2022
$ $
City of Burnside Movement Table
Opening balance 2,144,389 1,664,389
Contributions 294,000 480,000

2,438,389 2,144,389

2023 2022
$ $
City of West Torrens Movement Table
Opening balance 8,756,254 6,796,254
Contributions 1,200,500 1,960,000

9,956,754 8,756,254

2023 2022
$ $
Corporation of the City of Adelaide Movement Table
Opening balance 1,429,593 1,109,593
Contributions 196,000 320,000

1,625,593 1,429,593

2023 2022
$ $
Corporation of City of Unley Movement Table
Opening balance 3,752,680 2,912,680
Contributions 514,500 840,000

4,267,180 3,752,680

Capital contributions of constituent councils are payments received for investing in infrastructure. The rates of contributions
are agreed in the Charter of the Board.

Summary of capital contributions of constituent councils received during the year:

2023 2022
$ $
City of Mitcham 245,000 400,000
City of Burnside 294,000 480,000
City of West Torrens 1,200,500 1,960,000
City of Adelaide 196,000 320,000
City of Unley 514,500 840,000

2,450,000 4,000,000
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 17. Asset revaluation reserve

2023 2022
$ $
Infrastructure and land improvement
Opening balance 1 July 408,652 279,477
Net increment/(decrement) 161,738 129,175
Closing balance 30 June 570,390 408,652
Note 18. Capital funding and grants
2023 2022
$ $
Opening balance 16,638,521 11,638,521
Transfer from accumulated surplus 585,927 5,000,000

17,224, 448 16,638,521

Capital funding and grants reserve records the total revenue recognised from the funding providers for capital works to date.
Note 19. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives
The Board is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments. The most significant financial
risks to which the Board is exposed to are described below:

Specific risks

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

Financial instruments used

The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Board are:

- Trade receivables

- Cash at bank

- Trade and other payables

Objectives, policies and processes

The Board Members have overall responsibility for the establishment of the Board's financial risk management framework.
This includes the development of policies covering financial governance and the identification and management of financial
risk in accordance with the Board's risk management policy.

Details of significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the criteria for the recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised with respect to each class of financial asset,

financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed in note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Mitigation strategies for specific risks faced are described below:
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 19. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Board.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures to regularly monitor the financial stability of customers and
counterparties. There is no collateral held by the Board securing trade and other receivables.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the management of working capital. It is the risk that the Board will encounter difficulty in meeting
its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Board manages this risk by preparing and monitoring budgets, only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions
and proactively monitoring the recovery of unpaid debts.

At the reporting date, the Board has sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably expected
circumstances. The following table depicts the categorisation of financial instruments held by the Board, noting that due to
the nature of the balances held, carrying value is equal to fair value:

2023 2022
$ $
Financial assets
Held at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents (due less than 1 year) 10,151,401 9,502,569
Trade and other receivables (due less than 1 year) 295,521 441,304
Total financial assets 10,446,922 9,943,873
2023 2022
$ $
Financial liabilities
Held at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 467,269 537,080
Remaining contractual maturities
The table below reflects the undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities:
Weighted Remaining
average Between 1 Between 2 contractual
interestrate 1yearorless and2years and5years Over5years maturities
2023 % 3 $ $ $ $
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables
(excluding estimated annual
leave) - 467,269 - - - 467,269
Total non-derivatives 467,269 - - - 467,269

20
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 19. Financial instruments (continued)

Weighted Remaining
average Between 1 Between 2 contractual
interestrate 1yearorless and 2years and5years Over5years maturities
2022 % $ $ $ $ $
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables
(excluding estimated annual
leave) - 537,080 - - - 537,080
Total non-derivatives 537,080 - - - 537,080

The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.
Note 20. Fair value measurement

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair
value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal
market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and
best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and transfers
between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not
available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and
reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is
undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where
applicable, with external sources of data.

Fair value hierarchy

Infrastructure and land improvements are carried at fair value. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and
liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a 'level' in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

21
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 20. Fair value measurement (continued)

In determining fair values for infrastructure and land improvements there is no known market for these assets, and they are
valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

- The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for materials
and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience, or on industry construction guides where
these are more appropriate; and

- The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates of
residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by the Board.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficient construction techniques. Accordingly, the fair value of all assets within the infrastructure and land improvements
class are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Note 21. Key management personnel disclosures

Compensation
Key management personnel of the Board include the Project Director and members of the Board appointed under section
112 of the Local Government Act 1999. The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the Board is
set out below:

2023 2022
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 284,774 238,286
Post-employment benefits 29,901 23,829
314,675 262,115

Note 22. Remuneration of auditors
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by , the auditor of the Board:

2023 2022
$ $

Audit remuneration 5,270 5,150

Note 23. Contingent liabilities

In the opinion of the Board Members, the Board is unaware of any liability, contingent or otherwise, which has not already
been recorded elsewhere in this financial report at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022 : None).

Note 24. Commitments

2023 2022
$ $
South Park Lands
Park 16 - Wetland 300,000 600,000
Park 20 - Creek works - 1,000,000
Project management 45,000 100,000

345,000 1,700,000

2
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 24. Commitments (continued)

2023 2022
$ $
Other capital commitments
UBHC Millswood 1,973,000 -
UBHC Forestville 655,000 -
LBHC Packages 1-3 5,427,000 -
8,055,000 -
2023 2022
$ $
Reference design
Engineering Services 50,000 144,000
Consultant Services 200,000 24,000
Geotech 3,000 36,000
Legal - 4,000
Project management 150,000 12,000
403,000 220,000
2023 2022
$ $
Total contracted commitments 8,803,000 1,920,000

All contracted commitments noted above are expected to be paid within the next twelve months.

The Authority was awarded a $10 million grant from the Commonwealth Government in FY2022 and these funds are being
provided over 3 financial years (FY2023, FY2024 and FY2025) to contribute toward the delivery of Packages 1, 2 and 3 of
the Lower Brown Hill Creek upgrades.

Note 25. Related parties

Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 21.

There were no transactions with related parties during the current and previous financial year.

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that are controlled or
significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family members. There were no transactions with
other related parties for the year ending 30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

Note 26. Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the Board is:

Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

PO Box 124 Unley SA 5061

Note 27. Events after the reporting period

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2023 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
Board's operations, the results of those operations, or the Board's state of affairs in future financial years.

23
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Brown Hill & Keswick Creeks Storm Water Board
Notes to the financial statements
As at 30 June 2023

Note 28. Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) to net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital funding / grants

Physical resources received free of charge
Net loss on disposal of non-current assets

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decreasel/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in accrued revenue
Increase in prepayments
Increase in employee benefits
Increase/(decrease in trade and other payables (excluding income in advance relating to
capital grants)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

24
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2023 2022
$ $

(705,311) 5,134,004
193,552 86,279
(585,986)  (5,000,000)
- (463,605)
1,417,180 -
173,156 (150,964)
(26,068) (7,276)
(1,306) (12,245)
15,378 6,616
(69,810) 37,803
410,785 (369,388)
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
Certification of Auditor Independence

for the year ended 30 June 2023

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of the Brown
Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board for the year ended 30 June 2023, the Board’s Auditor,
Dean Newbery, has maintained its independence in accordance with requirements of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Claude Malak M

Acting CEO, City of Unley

Date 08/09 /2023
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
Certification of Auditor Independence

for the year ended 30 June 2023

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of the Brown
Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board for the year ended 30 June 2023, the Board’s Auditor,
Dean Newbery, has maintained its independence in accordance with requirements of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Terry Buss PSM / g

CEO, City of West Torrens /7

Date 08 |09 2023
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE: PROCUREMENT POLICY (OCTOBER 2023)

ITEM NUMBER: 2.2

DATE OF MEETING: 17 OCTOBER 2023

AUTHOR: ALEX BROWN, MANAGER FINANCE AND
PROCUREMENT

DIVISION: BUSINESS SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT

ATTACHMENTS: 1. REVISED PROCUREMENT POLICY

2. EXISTING PROCUREMENT POLICY

1. PURPOSE

This report presents a proposed Procurement Policy for the Audit
Committee’s consideration and recommendation to Council for
endorsement.

This Policy outlines the City of Unley’s to implementing fair, transparent
and competitive purchasing and contracting practices to achieve the best
value for money outcomes aligned to Council’s strategic objectives,
community expectations and the requirements of any special funding
sources. The Policy meets the requirements of section 49 of the Local
Government Act 1999 (the Act).

Attachment 1

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. The revised Procurement Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this
report (Item 2.2, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be presented
to Council for endorsement.

3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting
changes as required to the Procurement Policy to finalise the
document.
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RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES — FOUR YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

4. Civic Leadership

4.2 Council provides best value services to the community.
4.2 Council provides best value services to the community.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

BACKGROUND

Section 49(al) of the Local Government Act 1999 requires a council to
develop and maintain procurement policies, practices and procedures
directed towards:

o obtaining value in the expenditure of public money, and
o providing ethical and fair treatment of participants; and

. ensuring probity, accountability and transparency in procurement
operations.

The policies are to address the council’s position on the following matters;
o The contracting out of services; and

o Competitive tendering and the use of other measures to ensure that
services are obtained and delivered cost-effectively; and

o The use of local goods and services; and
o The sale of or disposal of land or other assets.
The City of Unley Procurement Policy communicates to all stakeholders

that the Council will undertake its procurement activities in a consistent,
accountable and transparent manner.

The Procurement Policy was last reviewed by the Audit Committee in
December 2020, and endorsed by Council in the same month. A copy of
the existing policy is included in Attachment 2.

Attachment 2

The proposed Procurement Policy has been reviewed as part of the
Council’'s program to refine its procurement practices, and align them with
best practice.

DISCUSSION

The proposed Procurement Policy (the Policy) is included in Attachment 1.
Attachment 1

As part of the review of the Procurement Policy, feedback was sought and
received from the Executive Management Team and staff that procure on
behalf of Council.
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The Policy has been amended to simplify and standardise our
procurement practice. It is based on the LGA Model Procurement Policy
and supports the Administration’s endeavours to align more closely with
LGA Procurement and best practice standards.

The key revisions and improvements to the Policy include:

o The scope of the Policy, and roles and responsibilities of Council’s
management and staff within the Policy, have been defined;

o The procurement objectives (as listed below) have been more clearly
articulated and explained, including:

o the importance of environmental sustainability and economic
sustainability, and

o providing opportunities to not-for-profit organisations (social
enterprises), local suppliers, and Aboriginal and Torres Straight
contractors and suppliers (to the extent permitted by law);

. Greater clarity regarding the procurement methods permissible in the
Procurement Threshold Matrix;

o The inclusion of secondary procurement processes to allow for
simplified engagement of suppliers from panel arrangements; and

o Simplified terminology and expanded definitions.

There has been no change in procurement financial thresholds as they
have been deemed appropriate for the maturity and structure of
procurement processes at this stage.

The proposed Policy has been endorsed by the Executive Management
Team.

A tracked version of the changes to the policy has not been provided given
the revisions to the format and content of the Policy are significant.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Policy meets the legislative requirements of section 49 of the Local
Government Act (1999)
6.1 Financial/budget implications

N/A

6.2 Risk Management (identification and mitigation)

The proposed policy emphasises the importance of identifying,
measuring and managing risk, including applying a risk based
approach to market.
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6.3

6.4

6.5

Staffing/Work Plans/Additional Resource Impact

The procurement framework, templates, and training material will be
updated to align with the proposed Procurement Policy once it has
been endorsed.

Climate/Environmental Impact

The revised Policy emphasises the importance of environmental
sustainability in planning and conducting procurement activities.

Social/Economic

The revised Policy seeks to promote opportunities for not-for-profit
organisations (social enterprises), local suppliers, and Aboriginal and
Torres Straight contractors and suppliers, to provide goods and
services to council (to the extent permitted by law).

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

1. The report be received.

2. The revised Procurement Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this
report (Item 2.2, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be presented
to Council for endorsement.

3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting

changes as required to the Procurement Policy, to finalise the
document.

This option recommends to Council the endorsement of the Policy. Council
policies are published on the City of Unley website once finalised.

Option 2-

1. The report be received.

2. Subject to the incorporation of the following amendments, the revised
Procurement Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report (ltem
2.2, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be presented to Council
for endorsement.

Amendments to be determined by the Audit Committee.
3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting

changes as required to the Procurement Policy, to finalise the
document.
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The Audit Committee may wish to make amendments to the Policy. If this
is the case, the amendments should be articulated as part of the
resolution.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title

Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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7.2. Council reserves the right to undertake public, select tenders or enter direct
negotiations wherever considered appropriate. Council may also by resolution, having
regard to this Policy and any other relevant factor, direct Council employees or
contracted staff to use a different method of procurement in its absolute discretion.

7.3. The value of a procurement is calculated as follows:

7.3.1.  Single one-off procurement - the total amount, or estimated total amount, of
the procurement (Ex GST);

7.3.2. Multiple procurements with the same supplier or contractor — the gross value,
or the estimated total gross value, of the procurements (Ex GST); or

7.3.3. Ongoing procurements over time — the annual gross value, or the estimated
total annual gross value, of the procurements (excluding GST).

7.4. The value of a procurement or transaction is calculated across all elements of the
procurement process including any agreement options, extensions, renewals, and
contingencies (Ex of GST) and should be considered in the planning phase of the
project.

7.5. Splitting the value of the purchase into individual components to meet lower value
Purchase Threshold requirements is strictly not permitted.

8. MARKET APPROACH
The market approach will be documented in an Acquisition Plan, with reference to several
factors including procurement complexity, value, risks, characteristics of the supply market,
and Council’s strategic objectives.

8.1. Direct Negotiation

8.1.1. Direct negotiation is a procurement method undertaken by directly
approaching and negotiating with one (1) supplier or contractor.

8.1.2. Prices should be benchmarked and value for money considered prior to
awarding contract.

8.2. Request for Quotation (RFQ)

8.2.1. This is where Council obtains quotations from prospective suppliers or
contractors for the provision of low value, low risk goods, services or works.

8.2.2. This method may be suitable for simple, largely price-based purchases.
8.3. Expressions of Interest (EOI)

8.3.1. Expressions of interest are useful when the number of suppliers or
contractors, market size or the approach to solving a problem is largely
unknown.

8.3.2. Such a process can form the basis for a future Request for Tender for the
goods, services or works.

8.3.3. Council should assess the market before conducting an EOI process and
refine the requirements as much as possible to ensure responses are
targeted appropriately.

8.4. Request for Tender (RFT)

8.4.1. This is where the Council issues a tender for goods, services or works.

Revised Procurement Policy (October 2023)
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3. POLICY OBJECTIVES

This policy has been developed to provide clear accountability, consistency and
transparency to all procurement activities of Council and to ensure delivery of the
following key objectives:

« providing for equitable and ethical behaviour in all procurement activities and
fair treatment of suppliers and third parties

¢ obtaining value for money through tendering and negotiating practices

¢ ensuring probity, accountability, transparency and, where appropriate,
reporting

« effective management of the end to end procurement lifecycle

¢ identification and management of risks, and

¢ ensuring that purchasing transactions are conducted within delegated
authority.

4. PRINCIPLES
The following key principles underpin all procurement activities at the City of Unley:
4.1 Open and Effective Competition

Procurement should, as far as is reasonably possible, be transparent and result
in fair and effective competition in the provision of goods and services. Council
will encourage healthy competition in the markets from which it purchases.

4.2 Value for Money

Council seeks to achieve value for money. The concept of best value is not
restricted to price alone. The best value assessment will include consideration
of one or more of the following criteria together with other relevant factors
pertaining to the individual procurement activity:

. contribution to the advancement of the Council’s strategic priorities

. ensuring that the goods and/or service(s) meet the needs of the
community through fitness for purpose, quality, services and support

. whole-of-life costs, including costs of acquiring, using, maintaining and

disposal
. internal administration costs
. technical compliance issues

. risk exposure, and
. the value of any associated environmental, social and economic benefits.

4.3 Ethical Behaviour and Fair Dealing

Council values the highest ethical and professional standards in its business
dealings. Council will aim to achieve integrity in its procurement activities
through transparent processes. Council employees involved in purchasing are

Procurement Policy Page 2 of 11
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to behave with impartiality, fairness, independence, openness, integrity and
professionalism in their discussions and negotiations with suppliers and their
representatives at all stages of the procurement process.

Council officers will observe the Code of Conduct for Employees reference at all
times during the conduct of procurement activities and comply with all legal and
common law obligations, including requirements of the Independent
Commissioner Against Corruption Act 2012.

4.4 Social, Economic and Environmental Sustainability

Council procurement plays an important role in the economic development of
South Australia. Promotion of employment, capital investment and support of
supply chains in our immediate region and the broader state should be actively
favoured when procurement decisions are made by Council.

Council acknowledges the South Australian Industry Participation Policy (IPP)
and the Industry Advocate Act 2017 and practices, as implemented by the State
Government of South Australia.

Council recognises the geographical boundaries of the member Councils of the
Eastern Regional Alliance (ERA) as its immediate region for the application of
the IPP.

To the extent permitted by law, when all other considerations are equal, Council
will favour the engagement of local suppliers and the use of South Australian
made goods and suppliers whose activities contribute to the economic
development of the region and/or provide local employment opportunities.

Council may also give preference to local contractors and suppliers by:

. actively promoting to local businesses’ opportunities to supply to the
Council

. structuring the purchasing processes to be accessible to all businesses

. ensuring, where possible, that specifications and purchasing descriptions
are not structured so as to potentially exclude local suppliers and
contractors.

Consideration may also be given, where practicable in the procurement
process, to investigate the inclusion of not-for-profit organisations (social
enterprises) that benefit the community (including the disadvantaged).

In addition, in order to minimise Council's impact on its environment, Council
will undertake best endeavours to adopt purchasing practices which conserve
natural resources in a way that achieves value for money on a whole of life
basis by generating benefits for the organisation and the community.

4.5 Risk Management

Council will ensure that appropriate risk management practices are in place for
procurement activities including risk identification, assessment, and mitigation
and will adopt sound risk management principles in its procurement activities
consistent with the Risk Management Policy and Framework.
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Procurement risk assessments will influence the approach to market, with
higher risk acquisitions requiring more formal procurement planning
methodologies and higher levels of management oversight.

Council will only engage suppliers who are able to maintain a level of Work
Health and Safety acceptable to the City of Unley. As a minimum, this will be in
compliance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2012, all associated
regulations and all requirements relating to contractors in the Council’s relevant
Work Health and Safety policies, and as specified in terms and conditions of
contractual arrangements.

5. PROCUREMENT
5.1 Methods of Procurement

The Procurement Framework outlines detailed information in relation to
methods of procurement. The procurement decision matrix (within the
Procurement Framework) outlines different transaction methods that can be
applied.

To meet the requirements in relation to open and fair processes, the Council will
select an approach to market method best suited to the procurement activities.

The determination of the method of procurement will be typically documented
by the preparation of an Acquisition Plan, detailing the most appropriate method
for the purchase and the delegated officers involved at each level of the
approval process.

The strategy and planning for the procurement process must be commensurate
with the estimated monetary value and the level of risk to Council arising from
the engagement. Strategic sourcing of goods and services requires planning
using a systematic and fact orientated approach to optimize Council's supply
base and to improve overall value.

The following table outlines the minimum procurement requirements which
includes:
. Written quote(s) for purchases over $2,000;

. An Acquisition Plan and competitive sourcing involving three written
quotes and for purchases over $10,000;

. A formal evaluation process for purchases over $50,000; and

. A formal tender process for purchases where the estimated gross value of
expenditure over the life of the contract exceeds $100,000.

Direct sourcing (i.e. a quote from a single supplier) may be used for purchases
up to $10,000.

Procurement Policy Page 4 of 11

Page 252 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 17 October 2023



5.2

Procurement Policy

Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 2 - Existing Procurement Policy

Value of -
Purchase Sourcing le\fr:'lll:t.'::.' Evaluation Acquisition
(excluding Method Quotes Method Plan
GST)
$0to Direct Nil 1 officer Short Form
$2,000
when a
contract is
$2,000 to . .
$10.000 Direct 1 1 officer required
$10,000 to - 2 officer
$50.000 Competitive 3 evaluation Short Form
$50,000 to - .
$100.000 Competitive 3 3_o_fﬁcer Medium Form
(minimum)
- evaluation
Greater than Competitive -
$100,000 tender 3 submissions panel Long Form

Council reserves the right to undertake public or select tenders and requests for
expressions of interest whenever considered appropriate.

For the purpose of this policy, the value of any purchase will be calculated as

follows:

. single one-off purchase — the total amount, or estimated amount of the

purchase (excluding GST)

. multiple purchases — the gross value of, or the estimated gross value of,
all items to be purchased (excluding GST), or

. ongoing purchases over a period of time — the annual gross value of the
purchases, or the estimated annual gross value (excluding GST).

Splitting the amounts to bring expenditure within lower limits is not permitted.

Persons with financial delegated authority to procure will be responsible for
ensuring appropriate practices and procedures for risk and opportunity
management are observed.

Council may, at its absolute discretion, by resolution, having regard to the
Procurement Principles and any other factors considered, utilise a different
method of procurement.

Tender Process

In circumstances that Council is required or elects to undertake a tender, an
open or select tender process may be undertaken.

An Open Tender must be advertised publicly through the use of the State
Government's contracts and tenders web site.
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A Select Tender process may be used where there are a limited number of
competitors with the required knowledge in the market place. The reason for
undertaking a Select Tender is required to be detailed in the Acquisition Plan.

Tenders will be evaluated in a systematic manner against clearly predetermined
evaluation criteria, with the process documented in a recommendation report.

Successful and unsuccessful respondents will be advised of the outcome of the
evaluation process, and offered a debriefing provided upon request.

5.3 Acquisition Plan
An Acquisition Plan is required for all purchases over $10,000 (ex GST) and for
the extension of contracts and where a contract is required to be executed even

if the procurement is under $10,000 (ex GST).

The Acquisition Plan will:

. detail the estimated value and the planned approach for the procurement

activity;

. identify the approval process required for each stage of the procurements;
and

. consider risk factors involved in the procurement.

5.4 Purchase Orders

Purchase orders provide a record of the intention to expend funds, evidence of
the process of approval, separation of duties and commitment of funds. A
Purchase Order establishes Council's terms and conditions with the supplier.

Purchase orders are required for purchases over $2,000 unless an exemption
applies within the Procurement Framework. The initiating officer and the
approving officer must be different Council officers, and a purchase order is not
official until it is approved.

5.5 Strategic Purchasing Cooperatives

Purchases may be made through strategic alliances and common use
arrangements that are established and administered by organisations listed
within the Procurement Framework with the aim of:

. reducing direct and indirect purchasing costs, and/or

. providing value for money through joint purchasing, and/or

. improving delivery and/or quality of outcomes to residents, and/or

. attracting more competition or a more suitable field of providers to
respond to the tender call.

Where the Council accesses contracts established through a strategic alliance,
it is deemed that these contracts meet the requirements of a tender process
and, therefore, do not require a further tender process and are not required to
be recorded in the Register for Dispensation from Procurement Policy.

Procurement Policy Page 6 of 11
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5.6 Dispensation from Procurement Policy

In circumstances where the Council enters into purchasing contracts, other than
those resulting from a competitive process, the Council will record the reasons
for entering into those contracts.

There may be rare situations, such as emergencies or occasions where
Council's procurement processes will not necessarily deliver the best outcome
for Council, in which case other market approaches may be more appropriate.
In these circumstances, the reason/s for not undertaking a competitive
quotation or tender must be identified and recorded in the Acquisition Plan.

Dispensation may be sought for the following situations:
. An emergency threatening life and/or property;
. The supply market is limited (due to lack of 3 suitable suppliers);

. Timing constraints - urgent purchase (not to be used for poor planning);

. Compatibility with existing equipment or involves repairs and maintenance
of existing equipment from original supplier;

. The exact same product or service (with the same specification) was
chosen through a competitive procurement process within the last 6
months; or

. Where funding arrangements or grants specify other requirements.

Approval for exemptions is required by the:

. relevant General Manager on the recommendation of the initiating officer
if the value of the purchase is under $250,000, or

. CEO if the value is over $250,000.

All such purchases, whether approved by a General Manager or the CEO, must
be recorded in a register (Register for Dispensation from Procurement Policy)
and reported to the Executive Management Team on a quarterly basis.

5.7 Negotiations

When requests for quotations, tenders or proposals have been invited for a
contract for the carrying out of work or the supply of goods or services, then
Council may negotiate with one or more respondents.

Probity requirements must apply in respect to any negotiation undertaken.
The Council may close down a tender (shut down) if tender submissions
received do not meet the requirements or no tender submissions are received

and proceed to negotiate with any one or more of the tenderers or any other
person.

5.8 Contracting Out of Services

The Council may explore contracting out opportunities in lieu of direct service
provision if better value for money can be achieved to gain the most efficient
and effective service delivery possible (subject to any restrictions or
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requirements contained within any enterprise based bargaining agreement).
This includes the consideration of shared services opportunities with other
Councils.

5.9 Confidentiality

Subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 and the
Local Government Act 1999 Council will maintain confidentiality in regard to
contractual arrangements with suppliers.

5.10 Sale and Disposal of Assets

For the sale and disposal of land and other assets, the following principles will

apply:

. consistency with and relevance to Council's Corporate and Strategic
Plans

. transparency and accountability in sale and disposal procedures and
practices to ensure that the Council obtains the best price in the
circumstances and that potential purchasers are given equal opportunity
to purchase the land or assets

. compliance with statutory and other obligations (e.g. Council Policy for
Disposal of Surplus Non-Community Land)

. commercial confidentiality within legislative constraints, and

. other relevant factors deemed appropriate by Council.

Consideration must also be given to the Prudential Management Policy (Policy

reference S0001), where relevant.

Council may utilise one or more of the following methods to sell or dispose of

land and other assets:

) trade in

. public auction

. select tender

. open tender

. by agency agreement, or

. a direct approach to potential purchasers (for example, adjoining
landholders).

Motor vehicle disposal is addressed in Council's Motor Vehicle Policy.

5.11 Prudential Management

An active risk management approach will be adopted when undertaking
significant projects that have a high initial or long-term impact on Council’s
budgets. A Prudential Report will be prepared for major projects that exceed the
threshold for minimum prudential risk management, as defined within Section
48 of the Local Government Act 1999. Before Council commences a prudential
project, the services of a suitably qualified staff member or independent person
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will be engaged to prepare a prudential report that includes all relevant issues
listed in section 48(2) of the Local Government Act 1999. Refer Council's
Prudential Management Policy.

6. DEFINITIONS

‘Acquisition Plan’

‘Direct sourcing’

‘Dispensation from
Procurement Policy’;

‘Probity’

‘Procurement’

‘Strategic sourcing’

‘Strategic Alliance’

‘Tender’

is a document that outlines the procurement
methodology and strategy to be undertaken in
procuring the required goods or services. This plan
also details the approval delegation before the
procurement strategy is commenced.

is the purchase of goods and/or services from a single
source.

the deviation from policy to pursue a method of
procurement that will provide the best outcome for the
Council.

means uprightness, honesty, proper and ethical
conduct and propriety in Council dealings.

is the complete action or process of acquiring or
obtaining goods, services or property from outside
Council at the operational level. For example,
purchasing, contracting, and negotiating directly with
the source of the supply through to acceptance and
payment.

is a process that continuously improves and re-
evaluates purchasing activities to gain value.

procurement activities through contract arrangements
already in established and administered by other
organisations such as, Local Government Association
Procurement, Procurement Australia etc.

a proposal, bid or offer that is submitted in response
to a Request for Tender.

LEGISLATION/REFERENCES

This is a mandatory policy as required under the Local Government Act 1999 (Section

49).

The following is a list of various Acts and Regulations that apply to Council's diverse
range of procurement activities. This policy is intended to supplement these
instruments. Any inconsistency that may arise between this policy and a relevant Act
or Regulation shall be resolved in favour of the act or regulations:

Procurement Policy
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. Local Government Act 1999

. Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Commonwealth)
. National Competition Policy

. Freedom of Information Act 1991

e Work Health and Safety Act 2012 (SA)

. Work Health and Safety Regulations 2012 (SA)

. Independent Commissioner Against Corruption Act 2012
. Environmental Protection Act 1993

. Security of Payment Act 2009

. Industry Advocate Act 2017

. Related Council Policies and Procedures

. Caretaker Policy

. Code of Conduct for Employees & Volunteers

. Disposal of Surplus Non-Community Land Policy

. Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy

. Gifts and Benefits Procedure

. Motor Vehicle Policy

. Work, Health and Safety Contractor Management Policy

8. ROLES/RESPONSIBILITIES

. Manager Finance and Procurement

. Co-ordinator — Procurement and Contracts.

9. AVAILABILITY

The policy is available for public inspection during normal office hours from:

Civic Centre
181 Unley Road
Unley SA 5061

A copy may be purchased for a fee as determined annually by Council.

It is also available for viewing, download and printing free of charge from the

Council's website, www.unley.sa.gov.au

Procurement Policy
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY
(OCTOBER 2023)
ITEM NUMBER: 2.3
DATE OF MEETING: 17 OCTOBER 2023
AUTHOR: ALEX BROWN, MANAGER FINANCE AND
PROCUREMENT
DIVISION: BUSINESS SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  TRACKED CHANGES TO THE EXISTING
POLICY
2. PROPOSED TREASURY MANAGEMENT
POLICY

1. PURPOSE

This report presents a proposed Treasury Management Policy for the
Audit Committee’s consideration and recommendation to Council for
endorsement.

This Policy guides Council’'s decision making regarding the financing of its
strategic objectives, as covered by its Long-term Financial Plan and
Annual Business Plan and Budget, and management of its cash
investments.

Attachment 1

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. The proposed Treasury Management Policy as set out in Attachment
1 to this report (Item 2.3, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be
presented to Council for endorsement.

3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting
changes as required to the Treasury Management Policy to finalise
the document.
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RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES — FOUR YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

4. Civic Leadership
4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

BACKGROUND

The existing Treasury Management Policy was last reviewed in 2019, and
endorsed by Council in September that year. A copy of the tracked
changes to the existing Policy is included in Attachment 2.

Attachment 2

The Policy addresses requirements of the Local Government Act 1999,
including section 134 - Borrowing and related financial arrangements, and
sections 139 — Investment powers and 140 — Review of investments.

DISCUSSION

The proposed Treasury Management Policy (the Policy) is included in
Attachment 1.

Attachment 1
The proposed changes to the Policy include:

e Revisions to the Policy’'s Preamble and Purpose/Objectives,
emphasising borrowings are to fund new and upgraded capital
aligned to strategic objectives (as distinct from operations and short
term cash flow),

e Providing greater clarity on roles and responsibilities,
e Updating related policies and procedures,
e Updating position names, and
¢ Minor grammatical and formatting changes.
There are no other substantive changes to the Policy.
The Preamble and Purpose/Objectives

Terminology within the Policy’'s Preamble has been revised to clarify the
Policy’s focus is directed to the financing of Council’s ‘strategic objectives’
rather than ‘operations’.

The Policy’s Purpose/Objectives have been revised, stating that Council
will generally only borrow funds to support long-term cash flow to fund new
and upgraded assets identified in Council endorsed strategies. This may
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include strategic land purchases, recognising the Open Space Fund Policy
has been established to fund the purchase of open space.

Roles and Responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities of Council, the Audit Committee, Chief
Executive Officer, management and finance team members have been
defined within the proposed policy.

These roles and responsibilities reflect the:

o requirements of the Local Government Act 1999,

o Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference,

o delegations provided within the existing policy, and
o reporting requirements within the existing policy.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are consistent with the
changes in Local Government Act 1999 that apply from 30 November
2023.

Formatting

The Policy has been aligned to the current policy template for the City of
Unley, including the inclusion of a table for the definitions.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Policy addresses the legislative requirements of the Local
Government Act (1999), including sections 134, 139 and 140 of the Act.

6.1 Financial/budget implications

N/A

6.2 Risk Management (identification and mitigation)

This Policy outlines the City of Unley’s approach to managing interest
rate risk, and minimising risks associated with the approval of loans
and utilisation of borrowings. It also addresses responsibility to
monitor and manage long term financial sustainability.

6.3 Staffing/Work Plans/Additional Resource Impact

Nil

6.4 Climate/Environmental Impact

Nil
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6.5 Social/lEconomic

Nil

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

1. The report be received.

2. The proposed Treasury Management Policy as set out in Attachment
1 to this report (Item 2.3, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be
presented to Council for endorsement.

3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting

changes as required to the Treasury Management Policy to finalise
the document.

This option recommends to Council the endorsement of the Policy. Council
policies are published on the City of Unley website once finalised.

Option 2-

1. The report be received.

2. Subject to the incorporation of the following amendments, the
Treasury Management Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Item 2.3, Audit Committee Meeting 17/10/2023) be presented to
Council for endorsement.

Amendments to be determined by the Audit Committee.
3. The CEO be authorised to make minor editorial and formatting

changes as required to the Treasury Management Policy, to finalise
the document.

The Audit Committee may wish to make amendments to the Policy. If this
is the case, the amendments should be articulated as part of the
resolution.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title

Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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INFORMATION REPORT

REPORT TITLE:

ITEM NUMBER:
DATE OF MEETING:
AUTHOR:

DIVISION:
ATTACHMENTS:

INTERNAL AUDIT: PROGRESS ON AGREED
MANAGEMENT ACTIONS (OCTOBER 2023)

2.4
17 OCTOBER 2023

JIM PHILLIPS, PRINCIPAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OFFICER

BUSINESS SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT

1. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIONS PROGRESS
REPORT

1. PURPOSE

This report provides an update on the progress of agreed management
actions arising from past internal audit recommendations and

improvements.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

3. RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES — FOUR YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

4. Civic Leadership

4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

4. BACKGROUND

This report provides an update on the progress of the agreed
management actions from the following internal audits:

o Procurement Off Contract Expenditure (October 2022)

o Property Leases and Licences (August 2023)

o Regulatory Services and Expiations (August 2023)

The last progress report of agreed actions was provided in May 2023.

Only details of newly completed actions are presented in this report.
Details of actions previously completed are not included.
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DISCUSSION

A total of 14 management actions were identified across the three internal
audits. Of these, five actions were previously completed, leaving three
actions outstanding since the last progress report in May 2023, and four
new actions arising from two audits completed in August: The Property
Leases and Licences Internal Audit and Regulatory Services and
Expitations Audit. A further three actions have now been completed, with
six remaining in progress.

The following table provides a summary of the status of the agreed
management actions:

Audit/

Risk Findings

Previously completed
Remaining actions
Not Started

In Progress

Now Completed

Total Completed

Actions

Procurement Off Contract Expenditure

Risk Findings 6 2 4 - 3 1
Observations 3 3 - - - -
4 - 3 1
Property Leases and Licences
Risk Findings 4 - 4 - 2 2 2
= = 2 2 2

Regulatory Services and Expiations
Risk Findings 1 - 1 - 1 - -

1 = 1 = 1 - -
ol 4[5 91613 9

The Procurement Off Contract Expenditure Internal Audit report identified
three risk findings and two business improvement opportunities.
Administration committed to undertake nine actions to address the risk
findings and business improvement opportunity. Six actions have been
completed, with the remaining three in progress. The completion of these
have been delayed due to the focus on key tenders and a more integrated
approach as part of the procurement and contract management
improvement program. Additional procurement support is now in place to
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complete these while the 2023-24 procurement plan is delivered. Revised
dates have been provided for the completion of these activities.

The Property Leases and Licences Internal Audit had three risk findings.
Administration committed to undertaking four actions, two of which are
completed and two are in progress.

The Regulatory Services and Expiations Internal Audit had one risk
finding. Administration committed to undertaking one action which is in
progress.

A detailed schedule of internal audit findings, the agreed actions, and
status can be found in Attachment 1.

Attachment 1

A progress update will be provided to the Audit Committee in May next
year, with agreed management actions arising from new internal audits
added as additional internal audits are completed.

REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title

Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE:

ITEM NUMBER:

DATE OF MEETING:

PROPOSED UPDATE TO AUDIT COMMITTEE
WORKPLAN (OCTOBER 2023)

2.5
17 OCTOBER 2023

AUTHOR: ALEX BROWN, MANAGER FINANCE AND
PROCUREMENT
DIVISION: BUSINESS SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT
ATTACHMENTS: 1. PROPOSED UPDATE TO THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE WORKPLAN (OCTOBER
2023)
1. PURPOSE

This report provides the Audit Committee with a proposed update to the
Audit Committee Workplan (the Workplan) for the 2023 calendar year. It
includes the proposed items for the first two meetings of the 2024 calendar

year.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. The proposed update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan as set
out in Attachment 1 to this report (Item 2.5, Audit Committee
Meeting, 17/10/2023) be endorsed.

3. RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES — FOUR YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

4. Civic Leadership

4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

4. BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee’s function is to monitor the risk management and
internal control environment of Council’s operations.
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The Audit Committee also has responsibility for overseeing Council’'s
internal and statutory audit responsibilities and functions in accordance
with section 126 of the Local Government Act 1999.

Under the Committee’s terms of reference, the Audit Committee has an
important independent role in assisting the Council in monitoring the
following areas:

o Financial Reporting and Sustainability

o Risk Management and Internal Controls
o Internal Audit and Compliance

o External Audit

o Governance

The current Workplan was developed to guide and report on the Audit
Committee’s activities for the 2023 calendar year and was endorsed by the
Audit Committee on 28 March 2023, with the last updated provided on 8
August 2023.

The Workplan is reviewed by Adminstration before each Audit Committee
meeting and updated as required to ensure that the Committee delivers on
its responsibilities as determined in the Audit Committee Terms of
Reference.

DISCUSSION

The proposed Workplan has been expanded to include the first two
meetings of the 2024 calendar year, and updated to:

o Reflect the completed work;

o Incorporate consideration of the implications of the legislative
changes to the Local Government Act (1999) which will result in
changes to the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference;

o Reflect the revised timing of the Draft Asset Management Plans,
which will be presented with the Draft Long-term Financial Plan;

o Reflect the revised timing of the review of the Risk Management
Policy. The revised policy has been drafted, but will be deferred until
the Executive Management Team has considered a revised Risk
Management Framework incorporating an updated Risk Matrix; and

o Reflect the revised timing of the presentations from Brownhill
Keswick Creek Stormwater Project and East Waste.

The proposed update to the Workplan is included in Attachment 1.
Attachment 1

Endorsement of the proposed update to the Workplan is sought from the
Committee.
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POLICY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Financial/budget implications
NIL

Risk Management (identification and mitigation)

A risk based approach has been applied in identifying the priorities
for the proposed Workplan.

Staffing/Work Plans/Additional Resource Impact

The proposed Workplan has been prepared with consideration to
Administration’s capacity deliver the proposed Workplan. It will be
monitored and updated as required to ensure that the Committee
delivers its role as set out in the Audit Committee Terms of
Reference.

Climate/Environmental Impact
Nil

Social/Economic
Nil

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

1.

2.

The report be received.

The proposed update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan as set
out in Attachment 1 to this report (Item 2.5, Audit Committee
Meeting, 17/10/2023) be endorsed.

The proposed update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan has been
prepared to assist the Audit Committee to fulfil its responsibilities as
outlined within the terms of reference for the Committee.

Option 2 —

1.
2.

The report be received

Subiject to incorporation of the following amendments, the proposed
update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan _as set out in
Attachment 1 to this report (Item 2.5, Audit Committee Meeting,
17/10/2023) be endorsed.

2.1 Amendments to be determined the Audit Committee

2.2 Etc

The Audit Committee may wish to request amendments to the proposed
update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan and include these in its
recommendation to Council.
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This Option provides the relevant wording to enable the Audit Committee
to articulate any changes required to the proposed update to the Audit
Committee Workplan, and to recommend these be incorporated by
Council at the time of adoption.

Should the Audit Committee wish to make amendments to the proposed
update to the Audit Committee Workplan, consideration should be given to
the available resourcing what additional resourcing may be required to
deliver a modified Plan.

Option 3 —

1. The report be received

2. The proposed update to the 2023 Audit Committee Workplan as set
out in Attachment 1 to this report (Item 2.5, Audit Committee
Meeting, 17/10/2023) be further amended and returned to the Audit
Committee for review.

The Committee may consider that further work is required to the Audit
Committee Workplan. This Option requests further development of the
documents and that they be returned to the Audit Committee at the next
meeting.

The Audit Committee should under this option, communicate what
amendments it would like to be made and resourcing that may be
required.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title

Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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Item 2.5 - Attachment 1 - Proposed Update to the Audit Committee Workplan (October 2023)
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